
Special Meeting of the Town Commission of the Town of Ocean Ridge to be held in the 

Town Hall on Friday, February 13, 1998, 12:00 PM. 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Stamos.  After the Pledge of Allegiance, roll 

call was answered by the following: 

 

  Commissioner Aaskov  Commissioner Bridges 

  Commissioner Kaleel   Commissioner O’Hare 

     Mayor Stamos 

 

IV.             Certification of Election Returns 

A. Official Election Results 

1. Certified Copy Supplied by Supervisor of Elections 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak advised that of the 1,251 registered voters, there were 448 votes 

cast.  Of the 448, she explained, 7 were absentee ballots.  She concluded that Gail Adams 

Aaskov received 295 votes and Ken Begelman received 147. 

 

Comm Bridges moved that the results of the election be certified, seconded by Comm 

Kaleel. 

 

Motion carried – yea 5. 

 

B. Seating of One Commissioner 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak swore in Gail Aaskov as a Commissioner. 

 

 

Mayor Stamos advised that this meeting would generally only include the certification of 

the election.  He advised that as a result of comments from the public regarding the 

discussion of agenda items, he felt that these additional items should have been 

postponed until the next regular meeting.  He added that he would like to see this meeting 

concluded within forty-five minutes. 

 

V.  Commission Action Items 

A. Ordinance No. 504; Amending the Code of Ordinances of the 

Town of Ocean Ridge, Florida; at Chapter 26, Article XV. Review 

Boards; by Amending Subsection (e) (2) of Section 26-233, Board 

of Adjustment, by Establishing an Appeal Period and Limitations 

for Appeals from Decisions of the Administrative Official (2
nd

 

Reading and Adoption) 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak read Ordinance No. 504 by title only. 

 

 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF OCEAN 

RIDGE HELD ON FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1998 

 2

Atty Nicoletti advised that the ordinance would establish a thirty-day appeal period 

regarding decisions made by the administrative official or various boards in the code.  He 

stated that thirty days was a typical period of time for this and added that he 

recommended approval. 

 

Comm Bridges questioned when the thirty days would begin.  Atty Nicoletti explained 

that it would begin after the decision of either the building official or the Board of 

Adjustment.  Comm Bridges asked for clarification that the appeal period did not begin 

thirty days from the start of construction to which Atty Nicoletti replied that it did not.  

Comm Bridges commented that this could create a problem because the residents may 

not be aware that a decision was made if construction does not start within thirty days.  

Atty Nicoletti advised that it would not be a problem with Board of Adjustment decisions 

as the hearings are advertised.   

 

Atty Nicoletti stated that the immediate posting of the permit would give notice to the 

neighbors.  Town Manager Lanker stated that contractors are not required to post the 

permit until construction begins.  Atty Nicoletti suggested that an ordinance could follow 

this which would require that the permit be posted immediately upon approval. 

 

Comm Kaleel moved to adopt Ordinance No. 504, seconded by Comm Aaskov. 

 

Mayor Stamos asked for comments from the public. 

 

Chris Currie, 27 Tropical Dr., advised that he agreed with Comm Bridges.  He stated that 

a contractor would only have to wait thirty days before beginning construction to bypass 

this ordinance.  He added that he would agree to an additional ordinance requiring that a 

permit be posted immediately, but that he would request that it be required to be posted 

conspicuously also. 

 

Atty Nicoletti stated that primarily the source of the appeal would be a first party which 

had been denied.  He advised that a small percentage of appeals are filed by third parties.  

He added that it is already required that the permits be posted conspicuously.  Earl Jones, 

14 Sailfish Lane, advised that the posted permit does not give sufficient information.  He 

questioned if neighboring homeowners are allowed to look at the drawings for a permit to 

which Town Manager Lanker replied that they could. 

 

Greg Van Vliet, 17 Tropical Dr., requested that ordinances similar to this be placed only 

on the regular Town Commission meetings so that more of the public will be aware of it.  

He asked if this would be retroactive to effect the Pace settlement to which Atty Nicoletti 

replied that it would not be retroactive as this ordinance looks forward from adoption for 

the next thirty days. 

 

Mr. Jones questioned the amount of time between 1
st
 and 2

nd
 readings of an ordinance.  

Town Clerk Hancsak advised that the advertisement for the 2
nd

 reading is advertised ten 

days before the hearing.   

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF OCEAN 

RIDGE HELD ON FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1998 

 3

Comm O’Hare questioned if any other municipality represented by Atty Nicoletti had an 

ordinance similar to this.  Atty Nicoletti replied that his other municipalities did not have 

an ordinance similar to this, but he is recommending to each of them that they do adopt 

one. 

 

Comm Bridges commented that he would like to see a stipulation added which would 

require that the permit be posted immediately. 

 

Mayor Stamos asked the public what they believed would be a good time limit if they 

were not in favor of the thirty days.  Mr. Currie advised that he did not believe there 

should be a time limit at all and that this ordinance would only be used to “cover the 

Town’s tail.”  Mr. Jones suggested that the time limit be closer to nine months for the 

benefit of the part-time residents who may only be in Town four to five months of the 

year. 

 

Comm Kaleel advised that it is the responsibility of the neighbors to protect their own 

land, but the Town also has a responsibility to protect the applicant.  He stated that he 

agreed with the need to post the permit immediately, but advised that there needed to be a 

finality to protect the applicant.  Comm Bridges suggested that the number of days be 

changed to sixty instead of thirty. 

 

Comm O’Hare asked what the period of time for appeal was in Delray Beach to which 

Atty Nicoletti advised that it was ten days.  Atty Nicoletti advised that anyone who 

receives a permit should be permitted to proceed without waiting over thirty days to 

know if his or her permit will be appealed.  He added that it would not be prudent on the 

part of the contractor to proceed as everything would be in jeopardy until they knew if the 

neighbors were going to sue or not. 

 

Comm Kaleel asked if notice could be given to all the surrounding neighbors that a 

building permit has been applied for.  Comm O’Hare questioned if asking the neighbors 

to review the plans shows that the Town does not have faith in the decisions of the 

building official. 

 

Mr. Currie advised that thirty days would not have been enough time to prevent the 

problem at 21 Tropical Dr. 

 

Mr. Van Vliet asked if changes could be made once a permit is issued to which Town 

Manager Lanker replied that they could.  Mr. Van Vliet advised that would render the 

time restriction almost useless.  Atty Nicoletti stated that the assumption that the building 

code can stand on its own without the need for a building official would not work.   

 

Roll call was made on Comm Kaleel’s motion. 

 

Motion carried – yea 4 (Aaskov, Kaleel, O’Hare, Stamos) 

      nay 1 (Bridges) 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF OCEAN 

RIDGE HELD ON FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1998 

 4

Comm Kaleel requested that the Town Atty draft an ordinance which would require the 

posting of permits upon approval by the building official. 

 

B. Resolution No. 98-06; Authorizing and Providing for the Closure 

of the East 25’ of Tropical Dr., a Private Road; Reserving to the 

Town the Right of Public Access (at the Request of Comm 

O’Hare) 

 

Atty Nicoletti advised that all the residents of Tropical Dr. had requested the closure of 

the east end of the street while reserving public access to the Town. 

 

Comm Kaleel moved to adopt Resolution No. 98-06, seconded by Comm Aaskov. 

 

Comm O’Hare requested to abstain from the vote, even though the Town Atty had 

previously informed him that there is no conflict, to avoid the appearance of impropriety.  

Atty Nicoletti advised that since there is no actual conflict, he must vote. 

 

Comm Aaskov asked for clarification if the posts for the closure will be removed from 

any Town easement.  Atty Nicoletti advised there would be a 25’ buffer from the edge of 

Old Ocean Blvd.  Town Manager Lanker advised that the drawings submitted at the 

previous Town Commission meeting show the buffer in the right-of-way. 

 

Comm O’Hare questioned if the homeowners are being exposed to liability if the 

blockage is put on private property.  Comm Aaskov commented that the closure is being 

done at the request of the homeowners.  Comm O’Hare stated that he did not see the 

distinction if the Town is endorsing the project.  Atty Nicoletti explained that the 

distinction lies in that the Town is not constructing the blockage. 

 

Comm O’Hare stated that he believed most of the property owners think the barrier will 

be in the right-of-way.  Comm Kaleel questioned that all the property owners knew of the 

plan.  Comm O’Hare stated that he does not believe they knew the specifics of the plan. 

 

Comm Kaleel withdrew his motion. 

 

Comm Bridges moved to postpone the issue until it is requested to go before the Town 

Commission by the residents of Tropical Dr., seconded by Comm Kaleel. 

 

Motion carried – yea 5. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF OCEAN 

RIDGE HELD ON FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1998 

 5

C. Readdress Emmett Pace vs. Town of Ocean Ridge Settlement (at 

the request of Comm Kaleel) 

 

Comm Kaleel stated that perhaps the title for this issue was incorrect.  He stated that he 

believed the first release was objected to, but that a new one was distributed to the 

Commissioners the night before.  Atty Nicoletti stated that he and Mr. Saberson, attorney 

for the O’Hare’s, have not been able to agree on the language for the releases.  He 

advised that the release has no connection with the settlement. 

 

There was discussion between Atty Saberson and Atty Nicoletti regarding the language 

of the releases.  It was decided that paragraphs 6 and 8 would be deleted and paragraph 

11 would contain new language that was submitted by Atty Saberson.  Atty Nicoletti 

advised that these changes would incorporate that any other claims of the O’Hare’s not 

related to the Pace matter remain that of the O’Hare’s, that the Town does not agree to 

never revoke the certificate of occupancy or building permit, and that the O’Hare’s 

release the Town from any claims in regards to the Pace issue.  Atty Saberson stated that 

he would recommend that his clients accept this release. 

 

Mr. Currie questioned what liability the Town would have if someone were killed or 

injured if they were using the loft area as living space and suit was brought against the 

Town.  Atty Nicoletti advised that the building permit states that the area can not be used 

for anything other than storage space.  He explained that if the homeowner allowed a 

code violation and something horrendous did occur, it would be very difficult for a suit to 

be brought against the Town. 

 

Mr. Jones stated that he had spoken with Phil Barlage, member of the Board of 

Adjustment for the January 1997 appeal hearing, and asked if he recalled whether the 

property at 21 Tropical was going to have pull down stairs for the attic to which he was 

told by Mr. Barlage that it would.  He stated that he was concerned that the certificate of 

occupancy was issued when a full size door and permanent ladder were leading to the 

loft.  Town Manager Lanker stated that the certificate of occupancy was issued with no 

legal egress to what may have been installed afterward. 

 

Atty Saberson stated that the O’Hare’s have an obligation now and hereafter to conform 

to the Town codes.   

 

Atty Nicoletti suggested that the Town Commission approve the release with the deletion 

of paragraphs 6 and 8, the addition of a new paragraph 11 as submitted by Atty Saberson, 

and a few additional language changes that have little substance.  He also suggested that 

the agreement be submitted and the money held in escrow for thirty days. 

 

Comm Kaleel moved to approve the release with the amendments outlined by Atty 

Nicoletti contingent upon review by the Mayor. 

 

There was no second for the motion. 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF OCEAN 

RIDGE HELD ON FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1998 

 6

Atty Nicoletti advised that Atty Dunkel is assuming that this release has been approved 

and the Town could be sued if this is not settled within a reasonable period of time. 

 

Comm Aaskov seconded Comm Kaleel’s motion. 

 

Motion carried – yea 3 (Aaskov, Kaleel, Stamos) 

      nay 1 (Bridges) 

     (O’Hare abstain) 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak advised that she would prepare a voter conflict document for 

Comm O’Hare to sign. 

 

D. Discuss Metropolitan Planning Organization Meeting Re: Bicycle 

Lanes (at the Request of Comm Bridges) 

 

Comm Bridges stated that as a result of a query by a Commissioner of another 

municipality, he felt that the meeting between Mayor Stamos, Comm O’Hare and the 

MPO may be a violation of the Sunshine Law.  He suggested that the Town Commission 

approve the Town Atty and the State Atty to review this for possible violations.  Atty 

Nicoletti stated that he could not take action as he may be called upon to represent the 

Town on this in the future.   

 

Atty Nicoletti explained that the Town had received a letter addressed to Mayor Stamos 

which was also copied to Comm O’Hare from the MPO acknowledging a meeting with 

Mayor Stamos.  He advised that the letter refers to a discussion regarding traffic and lane 

width.  He added that there was also a letter received which refers to this meeting and the 

representatives from the Town.  He advised that this could be a violation on technical 

grounds.  He explained that it would not be the obligation of the Town Atty to bring this 

before the State Atty unless instructed to do so by the Town Commission. 

 

Comm Bridges questioned how it could not be a violation for the Mayor and Comm 

O’Hare to meet and discuss the bike lanes without the meeting being noticed.  Comm 

O’Hare stated that he was in a room with many people to gather facts and never spoke 

directly to the Mayor. 

 

Comm Kaleel advised that several meetings ago, the Mayor had reprimanded Comms. 

Kaleel and Bridges for having a meeting regarding the Boynton Beach property which 

was noticed and where minutes were taken.  He advised that the letter states that Mayor 

Stamos and Comm O’Hare were able to agree with MPO on certain items.  He explained 

that he would not have a problem with a fact-finding discussion, but would object to a 

meeting in which decisions were made without the knowledge of the rest of the 

Commissioners or Town staff.   

 

Mayor Stamos stated that he had asked Atty Nicoletti before the meeting if it would be a 

violation and was told that it would not.  He stated that he had made a request to all of the 

Commissioners to accompany him to the presentation before the Palm Beach Legislature.  



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF OCEAN 

RIDGE HELD ON FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1998 

 7

Comm Kaleel clarified that he was referring to a request for a presentation on the scenic 

highway designation not the bike paths.  Mayor Stamos continued stating that in these 

situations, he talks to many people including senators and representatives.  He stated that 

the letter is very clear that nothing was approved, as it could not be without a majority of 

the Town Commission’s approval.  He explained that Randy Whitfield, of MPO, wrote to 

Joe Yesbeck, PE for FDOT, to receive information on the requirements which could be 

presented to the Town Commission.   

 

Comm Kaleel asked if the Mayor would have a problem with Comm Bridges and himself 

meeting with any Commissioners from Boynton Beach regarding the possible land 

purchases to which Mayor Stamos stated that he would have no objections.  Comm 

Bridges stated that it was completely contrary to the Sunshine Law, in his opinion, that 

two Commissioners attend an unpublicized, closed meeting.   

 

Comm Bridges advised that he wanted this instance brought before the State Attorney 

General’s Office.  Atty Nicoletti advised that he would distribute a memo to the Town 

Commission to give a better understanding of the Sunshine Law which may clear up this 

particular issue. 

 

Mayor Stamos reiterated that he had counseled with Atty Nicoletti before attending the 

meeting. 

 

Comm O’Hare advised that the topic of the bike lanes has been brought up at numerous 

Town Commission meetings in which everyone had agreed that more facts were needed.  

He stated that any conversation between himself and MPO or DOT was merely to gather 

facts adding that he was unsure why there is an attempt to cover the facts.  He concluded 

that at the MPO meeting, he made sure he did not speak directly to Mayor Stamos or give 

his opinion on the issue. 

 

Comm Bridges stated that it is the responsibility of the Town Manager to gather 

information or have representatives come before the Town Commission for presentation 

purposes.  He advised that he was told by others who were present at the same MPO 

meeting that they felt uncomfortable due to the attendance of two of the Ocean Ridge 

Commissioners.  

 

Comm Kaleel advised that the topic is very controversial and while he applauds their 

initiative in trying to gather information, he feels it should have been done differently.  

He stated that the Town Commission had only directed anyone to speak in regards to the 

scenic highway designation and not in a closed meeting about such a controversial issue.  

He advised that he was chastised for having a meeting with Boynton Beach which was, in 

fact, advertised. 

 

Mayor Stamos advised that he was not referring to the meeting with Boynton Beach, but 

the meetings which were back to back between the Commissioners and the Town 

Manager and Director Hillery.  He stated that a meeting which is advertised and where 

minutes are taken is certainly acceptable. 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF OCEAN 

RIDGE HELD ON FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1998 

 8

 

Mayor Stamos stated that the Town has a tendency to look foolish in the newspaper as a 

result of the fighting occurring between the Commissioners.  He advised that he has 

nothing to gain by being on the Town Commission adding that he feels it is harassment 

when he is constantly bombarded when he is only trying to help the Town. 

 

Mayor Stamos stated that when he was elected by one vote, there was a controversy 

involved with one of the Town employees voting improperly.  He reiterated that he was 

only trying to help the Town and he is always getting attacked for it.  Comm Kaleel 

stated that he did not believe they should continue to broaden the scope of the issue. 

 

Mayor Stamos commented that he did not have the advantage of being a professional 

attorney like Comm Kaleel to make these charges against him.  He advised that he did 

not want to discuss this issue anymore adding that if any Commissioner wanted to bring 

charges against him, they should do it and let the court decide his guilt or innocence. 

 

Comm Kaleel advised that he was not making any accusations or charges, but merely 

wanted to clarify the facts for the public so that there will be no misunderstanding.  He 

commented that the appearance “surely smells” especially when considering statements 

made by the Mayor on this same subject.  He explained that he wanted to ensure that all 

of the Commissioners were on the same page in regards to their stand on the issue. 

 

Mayor Stamos commented that he believed the problem to be one of jealousy on the part 

of the Commission.  He summarized this belief by stating that “somebody tried to do 

something for the Town and somebody else thinks that they should have probably been 

the person to do it.”  He advised that he could not think of any other reason as he and the 

other Commissioners were only trying to help the Town.  He added that there must be 

something wrong when there is this much criticism when they are only trying to help.  

Comm Kaleel advised that being involved in a discussion is not criticism.  Comm O’Hare 

advised that there was no discussion involved between himself and the Mayor at the 

MPO meeting.  Comm Kaleel suggested then that a letter be directed to Randy Whitfield 

which would controvert his letter indicating that items were agreed upon.  Comm O’Hare 

countered that they had only asked questions of Mr. Whitfield and he wrote back with 

answers that he had received.  He added that it is unfortunate that a Commissioner would 

take these tactics just because he is disappointed that the majority of people at the Town 

Commission meetings do not share his opinion regarding the protection of A1A.  Comm 

Bridges stated that he felt his position was better in that at least his is clearly defined. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF OCEAN 

RIDGE HELD ON FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1998 

 9

VI. Adjournment 

 

Mayor Stamos adjourned the meeting at 1:55 PM. 

 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Mayor Stamos 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Commissioner Aaskov 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Commissioner Bridges 

Attest By: 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Commissioner Kaleel 

________________________ 

Town Clerk  

       ___________________________ 

       Commissioner O’Hare 


